
I
CITY COUNCIL GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Minutes

May 13, 2009

2:00 p.m.

Media Briefing Room

I

Council Present:

Staff Present:

Others Present:

Mayor Phil Hardberger, Chair

Councilmember Mary Alice Cisneros, District I

Councilmember Delicia Herrera, District 6

Councilmember Justin Rodriguez, District 7

Councilmember John Clamp, District 10

Sheryl Sculley, City Manager, T.C. Broadnax, Assistant City

Manager, Sharon De La Garza, Assistant City Manager, Michael

Bernard, City Attorney; Park Pearson, City Auditor, Leticia Vacek,

City Clerk; Ben Gorzell, Finance Director, Rod Sanchez, Planning

and Development Services Director, Mike Sawaya, Aviation Interim

Director; Martha Sepeda, First Assistant City Attorney; Troy Elliott,

Finance Assistant Director; Eric Kaalund, Aviation Assistant

Director; Bernadette McKay, Deputy City Attorney; Bob Nordhaus,

Assistant City Attorney; Jeff Pullin, Finance/Public Utilities;

Melanie Seale, Finance; Mona Gamez, City Manager's Office; Jed

Maebius, Mayor's Office; Ruby Perez, Mayor's Office; Larry Zinn,

Mayor's Office; Mandy Milam, Office ofthe City Clerk

Steve Bartley, CPS Energy: Interim GM; Michael De La Garza, CPS

Energy: Local Government Relations Manager; Angela Dunlap,

Grant Thornton: Partner; Paula Gold-Williams, CPS Energy: CFO;

Liza Gonzalez, The Greater San Antonio Chamber of Commerce:

VP of Public Affairs; John Leal, CPS Energy: Local Government

Relations Analyst; Milton Lee, CPS Energy: CEO; Casandra Ortiz,

Shelton & Valadez, PC: Attorney; Sandra Rodriguez, Martinez,

Rosario, & Company, LLP: Audit Manager; Erik Runge, WOA1

News 4: Reporter; Josh Saunders, WOAI News 4: Photographer;

Carolyn Shellman, CPS Energy: General Counsel; Norma Soliz,

CPS Energy: Director; Robert J.Williams, Robert J. Williams, CPA

I

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Hardberger called the meeting to order.

I. Approval of minutes from the meeting of April 15, 2009

Councilmember Cisneros moved to approve the minutes of April 15, 2009 as submitted.

Councilmember Rodriguez seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Items requiring individual briefing(s)

Iof5



A. Presentation by staff regarding the request by Councilmember Diane G. Cibrian,

District 8, requesting the compilation of vacant city-owned properties that are

available in areas planned for revitalization and development in order to form a

Municipality Land Bank and engaging other government entities such as Bexar

County, area school districts in the formation of a Community Land Bank.

Presented by Rod Sanchez.

Mr. Sanchez stated that staff designed the plan to promote development in the inner City and

would rehabilitate underutilized buildings. He stated that staff had created an online database of

City-owned properties in 2007. He stated that the benefits of the program would be the

utilization of vacant property within the City and it would also alleviate the pressure to develop

on the outer limits of the City over the Aquifer.

Mr. Sanchez stated that the Infill and Reinvestment Strategy was built around five key

principles: l)New residential and commercial development on vacant lots in previously

developed areas, 2) Redevelopment of underused buildings and sites; 3) Rehabilitation, upgrade,

adaptive reuse of existing buildings; 4) Improved maintenance of existing buildings and sites;

and 5) Business recruitment and assistance. He added that private sector dollars and

concentrated development in specific areas would maximize the City's investment.

Mr. Sanchez stated the Strategy would promote infill development and reinvestment through the

following initiatives: 1) Coordination, research, and resource sharing; 2) Project incentives;

3) Reinvestment Plan Areas; and 4) Land Banking. He stated that staff was supportive of

including said initiative in the adopted Strategic Plan.

Councilmember Cisneros stated that there were approximately 1,000 vacant lots in District 1.

She expressed her concerns with restrictions on lot size. Mr. Sanchez stated that there were still

some hurdles that needed review. Councilmember Cisneros voiced her support for said item and

requested a meeting with staff to discuss the Five Point Area.

Councilmember Herrera noted that construction to revitalize a strip mall in her district would

begin soon. She added that it would be beneficial to create a mechanism that could help to

facilitate the revitalization of Edgewood.

Councilmember Cisneros moved to implement the Infill and Reinvestment Strategy that

included Municipal Lank Banking. Councilmember Herrera seconded the motion. The motion

carried unanimously.

B. Fiscal Year 2008 External Audit Results. Presented by Ben Gorzell.

Mr. Gorzell noted that the Auditing Reports had been completed at the end of March rather than

August as in previous years. He noted that the Council had received a Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report, Federal and State Single Audit Reports, the Passenger Facility Charge Audit,

and a Management Letter with comments and recommendations. He stated that on October 1,

2004, the City had converted financial systems from FAMIS to SAP. He added that in

I

I

I

2 of 5



I

I

I

December 2005, the department had not reconciled the transitions and was not able to produce

reports. He stated that employee turnover had been consistently high.

Mr. Gorzell spoke of the health check of the SAP System performed by SAP personnel. He also

referenced the complete reorganization of the department in which all business processes,

positions, skill sets, and salary levels were reevaluated. He noted the implementation of a

centralized shared financial services model and the relocation from City Hall Annex to

Riverview Towers. Additionally, staff was able to provide monthly financial reporting to the

City Manager and quarterly financial reporting to the City Council. He spoke of the

comprehensive review and validation and of current and past Federal and State Grants as well as

comprehensive review of the City's Capital Projects balances.

Ms. Dunlap, with Grant Thornton, stated that it was their responsibility to: 1) Perform an audit

which would provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance; 2) Form and express an opinion

about whether the financial statements prepared by management were materially correct, fairly

presented, and conformed with generally accepted accounting principles; and 3) Communicate

specific matters to the City. Ms. Sculley noted that Grant Thornton had just completed their

second audit. She added that cities generally hire external auditors for five years and that

renewal of Grant Thornton's contract would be discussed under Item C.

Ms. Dunlap stated that City management's responsibilities were: 1) Preparing and fairly presenting

the financial statements, schedule of expenditures of Federal and State awards and schedule of

expenditures of Passenger Facility Charges; 2) Establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over financial reporting and compliance; and 3) Providing Grant Thornton with written

representations. She stated that Grant Thornton had not preformed procedures to the level that they

could render an opinion on the internal controlled environment. She added that they had reviewed

the internal controls to ensure that they could define the nature, time, and extent of their

procedures. She spoke of the scope of the Audit noting that Grant Thornton performed audits on

many cities and could utilize that information for benchmarking.

Ms. Dunlap presented the results of the audit noting that Grant Thornton had issued an

unqualified opinion. She added that there had been no scope limitations, no unresolved audit

issues, and communications with management had been open and effective. Ms. Dunlap

highlighted the programs that were audited in the Single Audit and noted that six of the eight

prior year findings had been corrected as of September 30, 2008.

Ms. Dunlap spoke of the material weaknesses, significant deficiencies, and control deficiencies.

She reported that of the prior years internal controls, twenty-five recommendations were issued,

eleven had been implemented, and fourteen were in process as of September 20, 2008. She

noted that the City had implemented GASB Statement 45 and 50. She stated that there were no

issues with management's accounting estimates as reported in the financial statements. Ms.

Dunlap concluded by stating that: 1) There were no significant difficulties encountered in

dealing with management related to the audit; 2) There were no disagreements with management

about matters that could be significant to the City's financial statements or the auditor's report;

3) There were no going concern issues; and 4) They were not aware of management consulting

with other accountants about auditing or accounting matters.

3 of 5



Councilmember Herrera noted that she was the Chair of the Audit Committee and recounted the

state of the Finance Department before Mr. Gorzell. She thanked Grant Thornton and the

Finance Department for their efforts.

No action was necessary.

C. Staff recommendation on one year extension and renewal of the Audit Services

Contract. Presented by Ben Gorzell.

Mr. Gorzell noted that it was Grant Thornton's second year to audit the City. He spoke of the

terms of the contract and noted that the Audit had been completed in a reasonable timeframe. He

added that changing auditors was a difficult process and staff was happy with Grant Thornton's

performance on the audit.

Councilmember Rodriguez asked of the 50% SBEDA sub-contract provision. Mr. Gorzell

replied that it was outlined in the contract and that Grant Thornton would work on the audit plan

going forward then divide the scope of work before they start to ensure they achieve their target.

Councilmember Rodriguez asked how the 50% goal was qualified. Ms. Dunlap replied that the

sub-contractors received 50% of the fees.

Councilmember Cisneros noted that she was proud of San Antonio's AAA Bond Rating and

asked how much money the City had saved on the Bond Program. Mr. Gorzell responded that

over the life of the debt, the City had saved an estimated $8 million, although it was difficult to

quantify in the current economy.

Councilmember Clamp thanked Mr. Gorzell, Ms. Sculley, and Grant Thornton for the report.

Mr. Gorzell recognized Mr. Elliott, Ms. Seale, and all Finance staff for their work on said item.

Ms. Sculley noted the importance of the work that is done by the Finance Department. She

added that five positions had been eliminated from Finance Staff, but would not recommend

further reductions.

Councilmember Herrera moved to extend the contract with Grant Thornton for one year.

Councilmember Clamp seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously.

III. Council Consideration Request(s)

A. Consideration of a request by Councilmember John G. Clamp, District 10, requesting

CPS Energy (CPS) and the Director of Public Utilities to bring forth a plan to reduce

the effects of spikes in the Fuel Adjustments Cost charged to ratepayers and that the

feasibility for the City to use Off-system (grid) sales as a revenue source to fund

conservation efforts. Presented by Ben Gorzell; Steve Bartley.

Mr. Gorzell summarized the request by Councilmember Clamp and stated that staff

recommendation was to work with CPS to devise a plan that would address the fuel spikes then

come back with options to Governance. He noted that it would take $120 million over a four

month period to bring fuel prices down to those of the previous summer. He added that one

4 of 5

I

I

I



I

I

I

option discussed was smoothing the impact to customers over a period of time while preaching

conservation methods. He noted the Public Hearing on the Energy Conservation Program was

scheduled for the May 14, 2009 Council Meeting.

Mr. Bartley commended Councilmember Clamp for his proactive efforts. He stated that CPS was

also concerned about how prices affect their customers and noted that CPS foresaw price increases

in the future. He stated that one time reductions were not the goal; instead they may choose to

create a fund which would allow CPS to moderate the prices when they are high and replenish the

fund when they are low. He noted that the key would be to find monies for the fund.

Councilmember Herrera recognized that CPS was extremely capital intensive. She stated that

CPS kept the City alive and running. Councilmember Clamp noted that energy bills had been

a huge concern for his constituents in Fall 2008 and he was looking for a long term solution to

the problem.

Councilmember Herrera moved to accept staff recommendation to have the Finance Department

work with CPS to study, analyze, and potentially develop an option to smooth the effects of

increases in the Fuel Adjustment Charge. Councilmember Cisneros seconded the motion. The

motion carried unanimously.

IV. Audit Committee Update

Councilmember Herrera noted that the Committee would be meeting May 19, 2009.

V. Consideration of items for future meetings

No items addressed.

VI. Adjourn

There being no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at 3:02 pm.

ATTEST:

UluL; W.

tacia M. Vacek
City Clerk

5 of 5


